

Member Information Booklet

Big Island Amateur Radio Club – January 2020

Education and Outreach Committee

Edited by Leslie Hittner, KOBAD

BIARC Mission Statement

The Mission of the Big Island Amateur Radio Club (BIARC) is to recruit, educate and help committed Ham Radio operators carry on the traditions of amateur radio by using our network of technical resources and expertise to provide equipment, skilled operators and emergency services when called upon in time of need and to assist and protect the citizens in the communities in which we live and serve. BIARC is dedicated to community service and providing education to the general public about the history, operation, functions and benefits of the Amateur Radio Service.

BIARC members adhere to the Radio Amateur's Code and are considerate, loyal, progressive, friendly, balanced, and patriotic.

The Radio Amateur's Code The Radio Amateur is:

CONSIDERATE...He/[She] never knowingly operates in such a way as to lessen the pleasure of others.

LOYAL...He/[She] offers loyalty, encouragement and support to other amateurs, local clubs, the IARU Radio Society in his/[her] country, through which Amateur Radio in his/[her] country is represented nationally and internationally.

PROGRESSIVE...He/[She] keeps his/[her] station up to date. It is well-built and efficient. His/[Her] operating practice is above reproach.

FRIENDLY...He/[She] operates slowly and patiently when requested; offers friendly advice and counsel to beginners; kind assistance, cooperation and consideration for the interests of others. These are the marks of the amateur spirit.

BALANCED...Radio is a hobby, never interfering with duties owed to family, job, school or community.

PATRIOTIC...His/[Her] station and skills are always ready for service to country and community.

- adapted from the original Amateur's Code, written by Paul M. Segal, W9EEA, in 1928 and found on the ARRL website.

Table of Contents

BIARC Mission Statement
The Radio Amateur's Code3
Introduction
History
2020 Executive Board
Membership Obligations7
BIARC Standing Committees
Program Committee7
Voice Repeater Committee:7
Digital Systems Committee:
Operating Activities Committee:
Public Service Communications Committee:8
Education and Outreach Committee:8
BIARC Repeaters
Big Island Nets9
Appendix A – BIARC Constitution and By Laws10
Constitution
Big Island Amateur Radio Club, Inc10
May 18, 2019
PREAMBLE
PURPOSE
ARTICLE II
ARTICLE III14
ARTICLE IV14
ARTICLE V
ARTICLE VI14
ARTICLE VIII
ARTICLE IX15
SECTION 1

SECTION 2		. 16
SECTION 3		. 17
Big Island Amateu	ır Radio Club, Inc	19
Constitution and l	Bylaws Change Record	19
May 18, 2019:	Vote to replace previous Bylaws certified by BIARC Board of Directors.	19
May 18, 2019:	BIARC Board of Directors Implements this Constitution and Bylaws	19
May 18, 2019:	Interim Executive Board put in place	19

Tables

Table 1 Executive Board Members6

Introduction

This booklet has been designed to be a convenient information source for all new and seasoned Big Island Radio Club (BIARC) members. It consists of written information as well as pictures and tables. The booklet itself is updated annually and is distributed in printed format to all members after the January Executive Board Meeting. Electronic versions of this booklet can also be downloaded from the club's website after its release in January.

History

The past history of BIARC is buried in boxes of paper files distributed throughout many members' carports. I am continuing to build the story of BIARC from its inception. If you have information or old records, please let me know at **k0bad@arrl.net**.

BIARC Newsletter records go back to 2004. Those newsletters can be viewed on the BIARC website: https://www.biarc.net/newsletters.shtml.

2020 Executive Board

The 2020 Executive Board was elected by the membership at the November 09, 2019 Annual Membership Meeting in accordance with the new Constitution and Bylaws. At that time, six board members were nominated and elected to fill terms of 1 or 2 years. All board terms in subsequent elections will be for two years and half of the board will be elected. Overlapping of board-member terms ensures an improved carryover of institutional knowledge from one board to another.

In January of 2020, this new board elected its officers.

Name	(Term) Expires	Callsign	Board Role
William Polhemus	(1 year) Dec 2021	NH6ET	President
Jim Huntley	(2 year) Dec 2022	WH6FQI	Vice President
Leslie Hittner	(1 year) Dec 2021	KOBAD	Secretary
Tony Kitchen	(2 year) Dec 2022	WH6DVI	Treasurer
Bob Schneider	(2 year) Dec 2022	AH6J	Director
Mel Uchida	(1 year) Dec 2021	KH6EKD	Director
Paul Ducasse	Ex Officio	WH7BR	Station Trustee

The Executive Board members are as follows:

TABLE 1 EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS

Membership Obligations

Amateur radio operators are not required to join into clubs. They do so for a number of reasons. BIARC was formed in order to meet a number of needs:

- 1. BIARC provides organized training. Such training can serve to bring new members into the amateur radio community by helping people to pass their radio license exams. It can also provide important and essential training in math and electronics, EMCOMM, and specialized communications systems.
- BIARC brings the resources of large numbers of amateurs together in order to build amateur radio communications systems for the collective use of all amateurs on Hawai'i Island. Such systems include both VHF and UHF repeaters and may include other forms of infrastructure in the future.
- 3. BIARC offers opportunities for amateur radio operators to put faces to the people they talk to on a daily basis.

In order to fulfill these needs, BIARC has a need of its own: the club needs *active participating members.* Club members must come together to do the work of the club. In BIARC, that is done through a number of committees. Current committees and members are also listed on https://www.biarc.net/committees.shtml

BIARC Standing Committees

Program Committee: The Program Committee is chaired by the Vice President and consists of persons from appropriate interest areas.

Voice Repeater Committee: The voice repeater committee is responsible for maintaining all VHF/UHF voice repeater equipment owned by the club. The Voice Repeater Committee makes recommendations to the Executive Board regarding maintenance and update or replacement issues.

Digital Systems Committee: The Digital Systems Committee is responsible for maintaining all non-repeater digital equipment, including digital voice and data, owned by the club. The Digital Systems Committee makes recommendations to the Executive Board regarding maintenance and update or replacement issues.

Digital systems may include:

- HF digital systems;
- VHF/UHF packet systems;
- Winlink systems;
- VHF/UHF APRS nodes and digipeaters.

Operating Activities Committee: The Operating Activities Committee seeks input from the club membership regarding operating activities that can be sponsored by the club. The ARRL Field Day Chair is a member of this committee. The Station Trustee is a member of this committee. The committee plans and carries out activities that have been approved by the Executive Board. Operating Activities may include, but are not limited to the following:

- annual ARRL Field Day club participation;
- official club station entries into other radiosport activities;
- special event stations.

The Operating Activities Committee makes recommendations to the Executive Board regarding operating activities to be sponsored by the club.

Public Service Communications Committee: The Public Service Communications Committee is the liaison between Public Service agencies and Public Safety Agencies and BIARC. This committee seeks input from other community groups and individuals and makes recommendations to the Executive Board regarding activities pertaining to public services provided by the club. The Station Trustee is a member of this committee. Activities may include:

- SKYWARN activation callouts;
- emergency communications (EMCOMM) services;
- public service communications services.

Education and Outreach Committee: The Education and Outreach Committee is responsible for:

- planning and conducting amateur radio license classes at least annually;
- conducting VEC sessions at least annually;
- establishing relationships with local education agencies in order to provide resources for the study of science and social studies.

This committee works with other Executive Board committees to ensure that appropriate news and information releases regarding club activities are provided to local media outlets. This committee also manages the on-line presence of BIARC through technologies such as:

- the club's website;
- social media platforms.

In order for the club to fulfill its obligations to the members, its members must donate time, energy and knowledge to the club – and it is able to do so through these committees. Please consider becoming active on one or more of these standing committees. That is how the club's work gets done.

BIARC Repeaters

Amateur Radio clubs began installing and maintaining VHF/UHF repeaters in the 1970s. This infrastructure imposed increased obligations on clubs but the advantages of these repeaters were worth it. (1) They built and improved relationships between local amateur radio operators, (2) they provided increased EMCOMM facilities to clubs.

Please see **https://www.biarc.net/repeaters.shtml** for a comprehensive list of BIARC and other amateur radio repeaters on Hawaii Island.

Big Island Nets

Please see **https://www.biarc.net/nets.shtml** for a comprehensive list of BIARC and other amateur radio nets on Hawaii Island.

Appendix A – BIARC Constitution and By Laws

Constitution of the Big Island Amateur Radio Club, Inc. May 18, 2019

PREAMBLE

We the undersigned, desiring to secure for ourselves the pleasures and benefits of the association of persons commonly interested in Amateur Radio do hereby constitute ourselves the Big Island Amateur Radio Club, Incorporated and do enact this constitution and bylaws as our governing law.

PURPOSE

The purpose of this club, hereafter referred to as the BIARC, is:

- 1. to bring together amateur radio operators to secure closer cooperation and coordination of effort;
- 2. to develop individual efficiency of amateur radio operators;
- 3. to further the interest of amateur radio in the general community;
- 4. to secure the benefits of social and educational contacts with members; and
- 5. to transact any or all lawful activities for which nonprofit corporations may be incorporated under chapter 415B, Hawai'i revised statutes.

In addition, BIARC purposes include:

- 1. promoting the Amateur Radio Service in the community as a source of trained communications volunteers and communications equipment that can be utilized during civil and natural emergencies;
- 2. constructing and maintaining communications facilities for the use of the entire amateur radio community during routine and emergency situations;
- 3. promoting the Amateur Radio Service as an educational and service-oriented hobby.

In accordance with the Fourth Article of Incorporation, substantially all of the activities of this club are for the above stated purposes and no part of the net earnings of this corporation shall inure to the benefit of any private shareholder, member, or other individual, except that the corporation shall be authorized to make payments and compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in the Fourth and Fifth Articles of Incorporation.

No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be the carrying out of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate in or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(7) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or (b) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code.

ARTICLE I Membership

SECTION 1 All persons interested in amateur radio shall be eligible for membership upon payment of annual dues.

- 1. Full Members: Members who have Amateur Radio Licenses are designated as Full Members.
 - a. Adult Full Members: Full Members 18 years and older are designated as Adult Full Members. Adult Full Members have voting rights and may be elected to the Executive Board.
 - b. Youth Full Members: Full Members younger than 18 are designated as Youth Full Members. Youth Full Members have voting rights, but may not be elected to the Executive Board.
- 2. Associate Members: Members who do not have Amateur Radio Licenses are designated as Associate Members. Associate Members do not have voting rights and cannot be elected to the Executive Board.
 - a. Adult Associate Members: Associate Members 18 years and older are designated as Adult Associate Members.
 - b. Youth Associate Members: Associate Members younger than 18 are designated as Youth Associate Members.

Persons interested only in providing financial support to the club may make appropriate donations as non-members.

ARTICLE II

Executive Board

SECTION 1 The Executive Board shall consist of seven Adult Full Members - six elected by the membership and the seventh being the Station Trustee, who is an ex officio voting member of the Executive Board. The remaining Executive Board members shall be elected from the Adult Full Members of the club by secret ballot at the November Semi-Annual Membership Meeting. If there is no quorum at the November Semi-Annual Membership Meeting, the Executive Board may appoint Adult Full Members to fill expired Executive Board positions. The Station Trustee shall be appointed or renewed by the Executive Board annually in January. Elected Executive Board

members serve two-year terms beginning January 1. The Station Trustee may continue in that position until he or she resigns or is removed by the Executive Board. Upon implementation of this section, three Executive Board members will be elected for a one-year term and three Executive Board members will be elected for two-year terms. Thereafter all terms will be two-year terms.

Upon the adoption of this constitution, an interim board shall be established which has all of the powers, duties, and responsibilities of the Executive Board until an Executive Board can be elected in accordance with this Section.

SECTION 2 The Executive Board shall select officers from amongst Executive Board members in January. (see Article III). The Station Trustee may not hold any other officer position on the Executive Board. The terms of officers shall be one year.

SECTION 3 The business of the club shall be managed by its Executive Board. Each Executive Board member shall discharge Executive Board duties in good faith and with the diligence and care which an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances. The Executive Board shall have the power and authority to implement the purposes and goals of the club. These duties shall include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Performing all functions defined by other provisions of this Constitution or the Bylaws or by the membership of this club;
- 2. Performing all functions required by law and not herein specifically assigned to the members or officers;
- 3. Fulfilling other duties as appropriate: establish projects and budgets; evaluate the need for fund raising; authorize expenditures; plan with the Vice President club programs and locations; and discuss and prepare for presentation to the membership information relating to significant projects and undertakings of the club.

SECTION 4 The Executive Board shall meet a minimum of once per year in January and at the call of any Executive Board member. The dates, times, and locations of Executive Board meetings shall be publicized to all club members at least three days in advance of the meetings. The frequency of Executive Board meetings shall be consistent with the operational management nature of the Executive Board. The quorum for Executive Board meetings shall be a majority of Executive Board members (four for a full Executive Board).

SECTION 5 The officers of the Executive Board shall be: President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, and Station Trustee.

SECTION 6 An Executive Board vacancy occurring prior to the November Semi-Annual Membership Meeting must be filled by appointment by the Executive Board within three weeks after the vacancy is announced. The term of an appointed Executive Board member is that of the vacated position. Unless the term expires, an appointed Executive Board member must be confirmed by a vote of the membership at the next November Semi-Annual Membership Meeting.

SECTION 7 Members of the Executive Board may be removed by a three fourths vote of the Full Members eligible to vote in attendance at a Membership Meeting as defined in the Bylaws.

SECTION 8 The President shall: (1) preside at all meetings of the Executive Board and meetings of the club membership; (2) conduct meetings according to the rules adopted; (3) enforce due observance of this Constitution and Bylaws; (4) decide all questions of order; (5) sign all official

documents that are adopted by the club and none other; (6) appoint committees as appropriate to club activities; and (7) perform all other customary duties pertaining to the office of president.

SECTION 9 The Vice President shall: (1) assume all the duties of the President in the absence of the latter; (2) be the chair of the club Program Committee; and (3) arrange for meeting places for monthly club activities and scheduled meetings of the membership.

SECTION 10 The Secretary shall: (1) keep a record of the proceedings of all Executive Board meetings, Semi-Annual or special meetings of the membership; (2) in cooperation with the Treasurer, keep a roll of members; (3) carry on club correspondence; (4) read communications at meetings; (5) publish written notices in advance of Executive Board meetings and meetings of the membership; (6) maintain all official records of the club; (7) ensure continuing registration of the club with appropriate governmental entities including not-for-profit status, charitable organization status, tax exempt status; (8) maintain the club's ARRL affiliation; and (9) other duties. Upon succession, the outgoing Secretary shall turn over all club records to the incoming Secretary.

SECTION 11 The Treasurer shall: (1) receive and receipt for all moneys paid to the club; (2) keep an accurate account of all moneys received and expensed; (3) maintain a bank checking account in the club's name; and (4) maintain a listing of significant equipment owned by the club. The Treasurer shall pay no bills without proper authorization by the Executive Board. In November and May, the Treasurer shall submit a written itemized statement of disbursements and receipts to the Executive Board. Upon succession, the outgoing Treasurer shall turn over all club records and moneys to the incoming Treasurer.

ARTICLE III

Meetings

SECTION 1 At meetings of the membership, twenty per cent of the number of Full Members on the last day of the previous February shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Only Full Members who are physically present at meetings shall have the right to vote.

ARTICLE IV

Dues

SECTION 1 The Executive Board may recommend to the membership at any Semi-Annual Membership Meeting or special meeting of the membership such dues or assessments as shall be deemed necessary for the business of the organization within its objectives as set forth in the Preamble and Purpose of this constitution. Such recommendations shall be proposed in the form of an amendment to the Section II of the Bylaws.

Renewing membership dues are payable in December.

ARTICLE V

TVI-RFI and Membership Assistance

SECTION 1 Upon request, the club will provide technical advice to members concerning their equipment design and operation or to assist in assuring clean signals, uniform practice, and absence of spurious radiation from club members' stations.

ARTICLE VI

Amendments

SECTION 1 This Constitution may be amended by a two-thirds majority of the members in attendance at a Semi-Annual or special meeting of the membership. Proposals for amendments to this Constitution shall be submitted in writing at least one month prior to the meeting at which the vote is to be taken.

SECTION 2 The Bylaws to this Constitution may be amended by a simple majority at any Semi-Annual or special meeting of the membership.

ARTICLE VII Duration and Dissolution

The duration of the Big Island Amateur Radio Club, Inc. is perpetual. If and when the Big Island Amateur Radio Club, Inc. wishes to dissolve, the assets of the club shall be distributed to a local non-profit organization that falls under the 501(c)(7) code of the IRS.

ARTICLE VIII

Endorsements and Non-Discrimination

The Big Island Amateur Radio Club, Inc. will not endorse any amateur radio product or brand. The Big Island Amateur Radio Club, Inc. does not and shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion (creed), gender, gender expression, age, national origin (ancestry), disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or military status, in any of its activities or operations.

ARTICLE IX

Rules

SECTION 1 All proceedings of the club shall be governed by the Constitution and Bylaws of the Big Island Amateur Radio Club, Inc. Procedures and issues not defined in the Constitution and Bylaws will be resolved by Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised, 10th ed. (Cambridge, Mass.: Perseus Publishing, 2000).

Bylaws of the Big Island Amateur Radio Club, Inc.

May 18, 2019

SECTION 1

Meetings

Meetings of the club shall consist of regular monthly programs and activities, Semi-Annual Membership Meetings, and Special Membership Meetings. Semi-Annual Membership Meetings, which may also include a program, shall be held in May and November of each year. Regular monthly programs shall be held at a regular day and time determined annually by the Executive Board. Special Membership Meetings may be called by the President upon receipt of a written request signed by five Full Members of the club (See Section 2), and for this purpose, the President may also sign such a request. Notices of special Membership Meetings shall be sent by electronic mail and shall be sent at least 10 days prior to the scheduled meeting.

SECTION 2

Dues

The BIARC is a non-profit corporation in the State of Hawai'i and derives its operating funds entirely from membership dues, donations or grants, and special fund-raising activities.

Adult Full Members: Annual club dues for Full Members are \$20.00 and are payable in December of each year for the following calendar year. Dues for first-time Full Members who join the club on or after March are \$2.00 per month through and including the following December.

Adult Associate Members: Annual club dues for Associate Members are \$10.00 and are payable in December of each year for the following calendar year. Dues for first-time Associate Members who join the club on or after March are \$1.00 per month through and including the following December.

Youth Full Members: Annual club dues for Youth Full Members shall be \$5.00 and are payable in December of each year for the following calendar year. Youth Full Members who join the club on or after March need not pay dues until the following December or their 18th birthday, whichever occurs first.

Youth Associate Members: There are no annual dues for Youth Associate Members.

Family Membership: Dues are for individual memberships except that two or more related Adult Full Members living at the same address may choose to make a single dues payment of \$30.00 per year. In this case, the name and type of individual membership of each family member must be specified at the time of payment.

SECTION 3

Standing Committees

Standing committees of the Executive Board assist the Executive Board in carrying out its duties as defined in the Constitution. Executive Board members are expected to participate in one or more standing committees. Standing committee memberships shall be established by the Executive Board in January. Committee members do not have to be Executive Board members and may be drawn from all levels of Membership (Full or Associate including Youth memberships.)

Standing committees are expected to meet monthly in person or via the BIARC email and to submit written monthly reports of said meetings to the Executive Board Secretary.

All Executive Board standing committees will have a minimum of three members. All Executive Board standing committees will provide a proposed annual budget to the incoming Executive Board in January.

The Executive Board standing committees are as follows:

Program Committee: The Program Committee is chaired by the Vice President and shall consist of persons from appropriate interest areas.

Voice Repeater Committee: The voice repeater committee is responsible for maintaining all VHF/UHF voice repeater equipment owned by the club. The Voice Repeater Committee will make recommendations to the Executive Board regarding maintenance and update or replacement issues.

Digital Systems Committee: The Digital Systems Committee is responsible for maintaining all non-repeater digital equipment, including digital voice and data, owned by the club. The Digital Systems Committee will make recommendations to the Executive Board regarding maintenance and update or replacement issues.

Digital systems may include:

- HF digital systems;
- VHF/UHF packet systems;
- Winlink systems;
- VHF/UHF APRS nodes and digipeaters.

Operating Activities Committee: The Operating Activities Committee seeks input from the club membership regarding operating activities that can be sponsored by the club. The ARRL Field Day Chair shall be a member of this committee. The Station Trustee shall be a member of this committee. The committee shall plan and carry out activities that have been approved by the Executive Board.

Operating Activities may include, but are not limited to the following:

- annual ARRL Field Day club participation;
- official club station entries into other radiosport activities;
- special event stations.

The Operating Activities Committee will make recommendations to the Executive Board regarding operating activities to be sponsored by the club.

Public Service Communications Committee: The Public Service Communications Committee will be the liaison between Public Service agencies, Public Safety Agencies and BIARC. This committee shall seek input from other community groups and individuals and makes recommendations to the Executive Board regarding activities pertaining to public service provided by the club. The Station Trustee shall be a member of this committee.

Activities may include:

- SKYWARN activation callouts;
- emergency communications (EMCOMM) services;
- public service communications services.

Education and Outreach Committee: The Education and Outreach Committee is responsible for: planning and conducting amateur radio license classes at least annually; conducting VEC sessions at least annually; and establishing relationships with local education agencies in order to provide resources for the study of science and social studies.

This committee shall work with other Executive Board committees to ensure that appropriate news and information releases regarding club activities are provided to local media outlets.

This committee will also manage the on-line presence of BIARC through technologies such as:

- the club's website;
- social media platforms.

Big Island Amateur Radio Club, Inc. Constitution and Bylaws Change Record

May 18, 2019:	Vote to replace previous Bylaws certified by BIARC Board of Directors.
May 18, 2019:	BIARC Board of Directors Implements this Constitution and Bylaws.
May 18, 2019:	Interim Executive Board put in place.